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)
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)

REGINALD A. WILLIAMS, 
)




)
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)

DECISION


The Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) has cause to discipline Reginald A. Williams because he committed the crimes of obstruction of justice and making a false statement and because he lied to a law enforcement officer and a judge about the possible commission of federal offenses while on duty as a peace officer.

Procedure

On April 13, 2006, the Director filed a complaint seeking cause to discipline Williams’ peace officer license.  On June 22, 2006, Williams was personally served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing.  We held the hearing on September 13, 2006.  Assistant Attorney General Theodore A. Bruce appeared for the Director.  Neither Williams nor anyone on his behalf appeared.  Our reporter filed the transcript on October 12, 2006.

Findings of Fact

1. Williams holds a Class A peace officer license from the Director.

2. In or about May 2002, Williams knowingly misled an Assistant United States Attorney by stating that Rolanda Watkins possessed only 30.64 grams of cocaine base on or about August 14, 2001, when he knew that she possessed more than 30.64 grams.
3. In or about May 2002, Williams knowingly misled an Assistant United States Attorney by stating that Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey personally possessed cocaine base on or about August 14, 2001.
4. On August 17, 2004, Assistant United States Attorney Donald G. Wilkerson filed a superseding indictment (“the indictment”) charging Williams with two counts of hindering prosecution (Counts IV and V), one count of obstruction of justice (Count VI), and one count of making a false statement (Count VII).

5. The indictment alleges that Williams committed the conduct in Findings 2 and 3.
6. The indictment refers to Williams as a police officer and refers to his statement that “everything contained in the police report of the August 14, 2001 incident was correct[.]”

7. On April 28, 2005, Williams was found guilty in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri of two counts of hindering prosecution, one count of obstruction of justice, and one count of making a false statement.  The court sentenced Williams to 78 months in prison on two of the counts and 60 months in prison on the other two counts, with the terms to be served concurrently, and it assessed a $400 fine.

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the Director’s complaint.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Williams has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that Williams is subject to discipline under § 590.080, which states:


1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

*   *   *


(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed;


(3) Has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or a reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person[.]

Allegations in Complaint


We have set forth the charges in the superseding indictment because the judgment of guilty is our only evidence of the underlying conduct.  The Director’s complaint does not set forth the same facts as the indictment.  The complaint alleges:


6.  On or about May 2002, the respondent while a police officer, knowingly mislead [sic] an Assistant United States Attorney by falsely claiming that Rolanda Watkins, Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey, where [sic] in the possession of illegal drugs on or about August 1, 2001, when in fact, he knew this information was false, and knew that it would result in her arrest.


7.  On or about September 16, 2005, the respondent was sentenced to a total of 78 months in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri, for three counts of obstruction of Justice and one count of making a false statement, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1512(b)(3), 18 U.S.C. §1505)[sic], and 18 U.S.C. §1001(a)(2).


The allegation in paragraph 6 matches the information in the indictment as to Childs and Brown-Bey, but not as to Watkins.  The indictment alleges not that Williams accused Watkins of possession when he knew she was innocent, but that Williams lied about the amount of cocaine she possessed knowing that she had possessed more.  Williams was convicted of two counts of hindering prosecution, one count of obstruction of justice, and one count of making a false statement.  We cannot find discipline for uncharged conduct.
  Therefore, we do not consider the allegations concerning Watkins and do not find cause for discipline for committing the offense of hindering prosecution.
Cause for Discipline

Criminal Offense

Williams was found guilty of two counts of hindering prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1512(b)(3):

(b) Whoever knowingly uses intimidation, threatens, or corruptly persuades another person, or attempts to do so, or engages in misleading conduct toward another person, with intent to –

*   *   *

(3) hinder, delay, or prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer or judge of the United States of information relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense or a violation of conditions of probation supervised release, parole, or release pending judicial proceedings;

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than ten years, or both[;]
and one count of obstruction of justice under 18 U.S.C. § 1505:

Whoever, with intent to avoid, evade, prevent, or obstruct compliance, in whole or in part, with any civil investigative demand duly and properly made under the Antitrust Civil Process Act, willfully withholds, misrepresents, removes from any place, conceals, covers up, destroys, mutilates, alters, or by other means 
falsifies any documentary material, answers to written interrogatories, or oral testimony, which is the subject of such demand; or attempts to do so or solicits another to do so; or

Whoever corruptly, or by threats or force, or by any threatening letter or communication influences, obstructs, impedes or endeavors to influence, obstruct, or impede the due and proper administration of the law under which any pending proceeding is being had before any department or agency of the United States, or the due and proper exercise of the power of inquiry under which any inquiry or investigation is being had by either House, or any committee of either House or any joint committee of the Congress–

Shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not more than 5 years or, if the offense involves international or domestic terrorism (as defined in section 2331), imprisoned not more than 8 years, or both[;]
and one count of making a false statement under 18 U.S.C. 1001(a)(2):

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this section, whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch of the Government of the United States, knowingly and willfully --

*   *   *

(2) makes any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation . . .

shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not more than 5 years or, if the offense involves international or domestic terrorism (as defined in section 2331), imprisoned not more than 8 years, or both.  If the matter relates to an offense under chapter 109A, 109B, 110, or 117, or section 1591, then the term of imprisonment imposed under this section shall be not more than 8 years.

The Director’s evidence that Williams committed the criminal offenses is a certified copy of court records, which is admissible pursuant to § 536.070(10), RSMo 2000.  In addition, where no objection is made, we can and must consider hearsay evidence.
  We have found that Williams committed the conduct described in the federal laws based on his conviction in the 
criminal case.
  The Director has shown that Williams committed the criminal offenses of obstruction of justice and making a false statement.  Williams is subject to discipline under 
§ 590.080.1(2).

Active Duty


The Director argues that Williams committed an act while on active duty that involved moral turpitude.  Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”
In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 
(Mo. banc 1929)).

The evidence that Williams was acting as a police officer when he committed the conduct at issue is in the indictment.  Count I states:

On or about August 14, 2001, in St. Louis, Missouri in the Eastern District of Missouri, REGINALD WILLIAMS, the defendant herein and an officer with the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department, while acting under color of the laws of the State of Missouri . . . .

Count III also refers to Williams as a police officer, and all counts state that Williams “abused a position of trust[.]”  Count VII alleges that Williams advised an Assistant United States Attorney 
that everything in a police report was true.  We assume that Williams was acting as a police officer when he certified the accuracy of the police report.
While this is hearsay evidence, as stated above, we can and must consider it if, as in this case, there is no objection to it.
  We find that by lying to a law enforcement officer and a judge about the possible commission of federal offenses, Williams committed an act while on active duty that involved moral turpitude.  We find cause for discipline under § 590.080.1(3).

Summary

Williams is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(2) and (3).


SO ORDERED on December 8, 2006.


________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY


Commissioner
APPENDIX

Count IV

A.  The Grand Jury further Charges that:


1.  In or about May, 2002, with the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury, in St. Louis, Missouri, in the Eastern District of Missouri,

REGINALD WILLIAMS,

the defendant herein, did knowingly engage in misleading conduct toward another person, to wit:  an Assistant United States Attorney in the Eastern District of Missouri, with the intent to hinder, delay and prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer, to wit: said Assistant United States Attorney, and a judge of the United States of America, to wit: the United States District Judge for the Eastern District of Missouri supervising the Grand Jury for the Eastern District of Missouri, of information relating to the possible commission of a federal offense, to wit: possession with intent to distribute cocaine base by Rolanda Watkins on or about August 14, 2001, in that defendant Reginald Williams knowingly mislead [sic] said Assistant United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri by stating the Rolanda Watkins possessed only 30.64 grams of cocaine base on or about August 14, 2001.


In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(3); and

B.  Pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 994, and the United States Sentencing Guidelines promulgated in accordance therewith, the Grand Jury further charges the following offense conduct and factors relevant to the offense charged in paragraph A:


1.  The defendant substantially interfered with the administration of justice, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2J1.2(b)(2); and


2.  The offense involved obstructing the investigation or prosecution of a criminal offense, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2X3.1 (Accessory after the fact): and


3.  The defendant abused a position of trust there by making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 3B1.3.

Count V

A.  The Grand Jury further Charges that:


1.  In or about May, 2002, with the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury, in St. Louis, Missouri, in the Eastern District of Missouri,

REGINALD WILLIAMS,

the defendant herein, did knowingly engage in misleading conduct toward another person, to wit: an Assistant United States Attorney in the Eastern District of Missouri, with the intent to hinder, delay and prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer, to wit: said Assistant United States Attorney, and a judge of the United States of America, to wit: the United States District Judge for the Eastern District of Missouri supervising the Grand Jury for the Eastern District of Missouri, of information relating to the possible commission of federal offenses, to wit: possession with intent to distribute cocaine base by Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey on or about August 14, 2001, in that defendant Reginald Williams knowingly mislead [sic] said Assistant United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri by stating that both Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey personally possessed cocaine base on or about August 14, 2001.


In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1512(b)(3); and

B.  Pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 994, and the United States Sentencing Guidelines promulgated in accordance therewith, the Grand Jury further charges the following offense conduct and factors relevant to the offense charged in paragraph A:


1.  The defendant substantially interfered with the administration of justice, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2J1.2(b)(2); and


2.  The offense involved obstructing the investigation or prosecution of a criminal offense, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2X3.1 (Accessory after the fact): and


3.  The defendant abused a position of trust thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 3B1.3.

Count VI

A.  The Grand Jury further Charges that:


1.  In or about May, 2002, with the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury, in St. Louis, Missouri, in the Eastern District of Missouri,

REGINALD WILLIAMS,

the defendant herein, did corruptly influence, obstruct and impede and endeavor to influence, obstruct and impede the due and proper administration of the law under which a pending proceeding, to wit: the determination whether to present to the Grand Jury for the Eastern District of Missouri criminal charges against Rolanda Watkins, Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey in file number 2001R00999, was being had before a department or agency of the United States, to wit: the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Missouri, a part of the U.S. Department of Justice, in that Reginald Williams falsely advised an Assistant United States Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri that on or about August 14, 2001, Rolanda Watkins possessed only 30.64 grams of cocaine base and Demetrius Childs and Curtis Brown-Bey each personally possessed a quantity of cocaine base.


In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1505; and

B.  Pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 994, and the United States Sentencing Guidelines promulgated in accordance therewith, the Grand Jury further charges the following offense conduct and factors relevant to the offense charged in paragraph A:


1.  The defendant used more than minimal planning, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2F1.1(b)(2); and


2.  The defendant abused a position of trust thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 3B1.3.

Count VII

A.  The Grand Jury further charges that:


In or about May, 2002, with the exact date being unknown to the Grand Jury, in St. Louis, Missouri, within the Eastern District of Missouri,

REGINALD WILLIAMS,

the defendant herein, in a matter within the jurisdiction of the Department of Justice, United States Attorneys Office for the Eastern District of Missouri, a department of the United States, knowingly and willfully made materially false, fictitious and fraudulent statements and representations, to wit:


1) defendant Reginald Williams advised an Assistant United States Attorney that on or about August 14, 2001, Rolanda Watkins possessed 30.64 grams of cocaine base, when in truth and fact, and as defendant Reginald Williams well knew, Rolanda Watkins possessed more than 30.64 grams of cocaine base;

2) defendant Reginald Williams advised an Assistant United States Attorney that on or about August 14, 2001, he observed Curtis Brown-Bey measuring suspected cocaine base on his lap in the front passenger seat of a vehicle, when in truth and fact, he did not make said observation and Curtis Brown-Bey did not possess any cocaine base; and

3) defendant Reginald Williams advised an Assistant United States Attorney that everything contained in the police report of the August 14, 2001 incident was correct in its allegations against subjects Demetrius Childs, Rolanda Watkins, Curtis Brown-Bey and Larry Boyd, when in truth and fact, the police report contained false allegations against Demetrius Childs, Rolanda Watkins, Curtis Brown-Bey and Larry Boyd.


In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001(a)(2); and

B.  Pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 994, and the United States Sentencing Guidelines promulgated in accordance therewith, the Grand Jury further charges the following offense conduct and factors relevant to the offense charged in paragraph A:


1.  The defendant used more than minimal planning, thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 2F1.1(b)(2) and the defendant abused a position of trust thereby making the offense punishable under United States Sentencing Guideline Section 3B1.3.

	�Pet’r Ex. 2.  We set forth the full text of these counts in our Appendix.


	�Count VII.


	�Section 621.045.  Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2005 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri.


	�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


	�Missouri Dental Bd. v. Cohen, 867 S.W.2d 295, 297 (Mo. App., W.D. 1993).  


	�� HYPERLINK "http://web2.westlaw.com/find/default.wl?vc=0&rp=%2ffind%2fdefault.wl&DB=4644&SerialNum=2004378390&FindType=Y&ReferencePositionType=S&ReferencePosition=736&AP=&fn=_top&utid=%7bB540C0A1-15F6-4624-9D00-FCBD73D5EBB5%7d&rs=WLW6.11&mt=Missouri&vr=2.0&sv=Split" \t "_top" �Clark v. FAG Bearings Corp., 134 S.W.3d 730, 736 (Mo. App., S.D. 2004)� (citing Dorman v. State Bd. of Regis’n for the Healing Arts, 62 S.W.3d 446 (Mo. App., W.D. 2001)).


	�Carr v. Holt, 134 S.W.3d 647, 649 (Mo. App., E.D. 2004) (citing James v. Paul, 49 S.W.3d 678, 682-83 (Mo. banc 2001)).  The Director also cites Regulation 11 CSR 75-13.090, which states:





(2) As used in section 590.080.1, RSMo:





(A) The phrase has “committed any criminal offense” includes a person who has pleaded guilty to, been found guilty of, or been convicted of any criminal offense.





Because we have other evidence that Williams committed the offense, we do not address whether this regulation can be used to prove cause for discipline under § 590.080.1(2).


	�Clark, 134 S.W.3d at 736.


	�We do not set forth Counts I-III because Williams was not found guilty of these counts.
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